# PRIVILEGES OF THE FLOOR

Mr. MANCHIN. Mr. President, I ask unanimous consent that Peter Stahley and Jordan Kahn, two legislative fellows of my staff, are granted privileges of the floor for the 116th Congress.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. Without objection.

Mr. CARDIN. Mr. President, I ask unanimous consent that floor privileges be granted to retired Army CPT Jonathan Ng, a Department of Defense fellow serving in my office, for the remainder of this session of Congress.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. Without objection, it is so ordered.

Mr. SULLIVAN. Mr. President, I ask unanimous consent that Elizabeth Ahkivgak, an intern in my office, be granted floor privileges for the remainder of the day.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. Without objection, it is so ordered.

RESOLUTIONS SUBMITTED TODAY

Mrs. FISCHER. Mr. President, I ask unanimous consent that the Senate now proceed to the en bloc consideration of the following Senate resolutions, which were submitted earlier today: S. Res. 437, S. Res. 438, S. Res. 439, S. Res. 440, and S. Res. 441.

There being no objection, the Senate proceeded to consider the resolutions en bloc.

Mrs. FISCHER. I ask unanimous consent that the resolutions be agreed to, that the preambles be agreed to, and that the motions to reconsider be considered made and laid upon the table, all en bloc.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. Without objection, it is so ordered.

The resolutions (S. Res. 437, S. Res. 438, S. Res. 439, S. Res. 440, and S. Res. 441) were agreed to.

The preambles were agreed to.

(The resolutions, with their preambles, are printed in today's RECORD under "Submitted Resolutions.")

# UNANIMOUS CONSENT AGREEMENT—H.R. 4566

Mrs. FISCHER. Mr. President, I ask unanimous consent that if the Senate receives H.R. 4566 and the text is identical to the text of S. 2592, as introduced, that the Senate proceed to the immediate consideration of H.R. 4566; that the bill be considered read a third time; and that the Senate vote on the passage of the bill; finally, if passed, that the motion to reconsider be considered made and laid upon the table with no intervening action or debate.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. Without objection, it is so ordered.

CHARGING HELPS AGENCIES RE-ALIZE GENERAL EFFICIENCICES ACT

Mrs. FISCHER. Mr. President, I ask unanimous consent that the Senate proceed to the immediate consideration of Calendar No. 199, S. 2193. The PRESIDING OFFICER. The clerk will report the bill by title.

The senior assistant legislative clerk read as follows:

A bill (S. 2193) to require the Administrator of General Services to issue guidance to clarify that Federal agencies may pay by charge card for the charging of Federal electric motor vehicles, and for other purposes.

There being no objection, the Senate proceeded to consider the bill, which had been reported from the Committee on Homeland Security and Governmental Affairs, with amendments, as follows:

(The parts of the bill intended to be stricken are shown in boldface brackets, and the parts of the bill intended to be inserted are shown in italics.)

S. 2193

Be it enacted by the Senate and House of Representatives of the United States of America in Congress assembled,

# SECTION 1. SHORT TITLE.

This Act may be cited as the "Charging Helps Agencies Realize General Efficiencies Act" or the "CHARGE Act".

### SEC. 2. PAYMENT BY CHARGE CARD FOR CHARG-ING FEDERAL ELECTRIC MOTOR VE-HICLES.

(a) DEFINITIONS.—In this Act—

(1) the term "Administrator" means the Administrator of General Services;

(2) the term "charge card"-

[(A) means a card, plate, coupon book, or other credit device existing for the purpose of obtaining money, property, labor, or services on credit; and]

(A) means a card, plate, coupon book, or other means existing for the purpose of obtaining money, property, labor, or services; and (B) includes—

(i) a card issued under the GSA SmartPay program: and

(ii) a Fleet Services card:

(3) the term "covered electric motor vehicle" means a passenger carrier that is—

(A) a passenger motor vehicle; and

(B) an electric motor vehicle;

(4) the term "electric motor vehicle" has the meaning given the term in section 601 of the Energy Policy Act of 1992 (42 U.S.C. 13271);

(5) the term "electric motor vehicle charging station" means a battery-charging station that permits the transfer of electric energy (by conductive or inductive means) to a battery or other storage device in an electric motor vehicle; and

(6) the terms "Federal agency" and "passenger carrier" have the meanings given those terms in section 1344(h) of title 31, United States Code.

(b) GUIDANCE.—Not later than 180 days after the date of enactment of this Act, the Administrator shall issue guidance to clarify that each Federal agency may, in accordance with section 1344 of title 31, United States Code—

(1) charge a covered electric motor vehicle at a commercial electric motor vehicle charging station; and

(2) pay for a transaction described in paragraph (1) with a charge card.

(c) ISSUANCE OF CHARGE CARDS.—Not later than 180 days after the date of enactment of this Act, the Administrator shall issue to each Federal agency a charge card for each covered electric motor vehicle of the Federal agency that may be used by an officer or employee of the Federal agency to [charge] pay for charging the covered motor vehicle in accordance with the guidance issued under subsection (b).

Mrs. FISCHER. I ask unanimous consent that the committee-reported

amendments be agreed to; that the bill, as amended, be considered read a third time and passed; and that the motion to reconsider be considered made and laid upon the table.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. Without objection, it is so ordered.

The committee-reported amendments were agreed to.

The bill (S. 2193), as amended, was ordered to be engrossed for a third reading, was read the third time, and passed, as follows:

### S. 2193

Be it enacted by the Senate and House of Representatives of the United States of America in Congress assembled,

SECTION 1. SHORT TITLE.

This Act may be cited as the "Charging Helps Agencies Realize General Efficiencies Act" or the "CHARGE Act".

#### SEC. 2. PAYMENT BY CHARGE CARD FOR CHARG-ING FEDERAL ELECTRIC MOTOR VE-HICLES.

(a) DEFINITIONS.—In this Act—

(1) the term "Administrator" means the Administrator of General Services;

(2) the term "charge card"—

(A) means a card, plate, coupon book, or other means existing for the purpose of obtaining money, property, labor, or services; and

(B) includes—

(i) a card issued under the GSA SmartPay program; and

(ii) a Fleet Services card;

(3) the term "covered electric motor vehicle" means a passenger carrier that is—

(A) a passenger motor vehicle; and

(B) an electric motor vehicle;

(4) the term "electric motor vehicle" has the meaning given the term in section 601 of the Energy Policy Act of 1992 (42 U.S.C. 13271);

(5) the term "electric motor vehicle charging station" means a battery-charging station that permits the transfer of electric energy (by conductive or inductive means) to a battery or other storage device in an electric motor vehicle; and

(6) the terms "Federal agency" and "passenger carrier" have the meanings given those terms in section 1344(h) of title 31, United States Code.

(b) GUIDANCE.—Not later than 180 days after the date of enactment of this Act, the Administrator shall issue guidance to clarify that each Federal agency may, in accordance with section 1344 of title 31, United States Code—

(1) charge a covered electric motor vehicle at a commercial electric motor vehicle charging station; and

(2) pay for a transaction described in paragraph (1) with a charge card.

(c) ISSUANCE OF CHARGE CARDS.—Not later than 180 days after the date of enactment of this Act, the Administrator shall issue to each Federal agency a charge card for each covered electric motor vehicle of the Federal agency that may be used by an officer or employee of the Federal agency to pay for charging the covered motor vehicle in accordance with the guidance issued under subsection (b).

# REPRESENTATIVE PAYEE FRAUD PREVENTION ACT OF 2019

Mrs. FISCHER. Mr. President, I ask unanimous consent that the Senate proceed to the immediate consideration of Calendar No. 148, S. 1430.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. The clerk will report the bill by title.

A bill (S. 1430) to amend title 5, United States Code, to prevent fraud by representative payees.

There being no objection, the Senate proceeded to consider the bill, which had been reported from the Committee on Homeland Security and Governmental Affairs, with amendments, as follows:

(The parts of the bill intended to be stricken are shown in boldface brackets and the parts of the bill intended to be inserted are shown in italics.)

### S. 1430

Be it enacted by the Senate and House of Representatives of the United States of America in Congress assembled,

# SECTION 1. SHORT TITLE.

This Act may be cited as the "Representative Payee Fraud Prevention Act of 2019". SEC. 2. REPRESENTATIVE PAYEE FRAUD.

#### SEC. 2. REFRESENTATIVE FAILE

(a) DEFINITIONS.—

(1) CSRS.—Section 8331 of title 5, United States Code, is amended—

(A) in paragraph (31), by striking "and" at the end;

 $({\rm B})$  in paragraph (32), by striking the period at the end and inserting ''; and ''; and

(C) by adding at the end the following: "(33) 'representative payee' means a person (including an organization) appointed under section 8345(e)(1) to receive payments on be-

half of a minor or an individual mentally incompetent or under other legal disability.". (2) FERS.—Section 8401 of title 5, United

States Code, is amended— (A) in paragraph (37), by striking "and" at the end:

(B) in paragraph (38), by striking the period at the end and inserting "; and"; and

(C) by adding at the end the following:

"(39) 'representative payee' means a person (including an organization) appointed under section 8466(c)(1) to receive payments on behalf of a minor or an individual mentally incompetent or under other legal disability.".

(b) Embezzlement or Conversion.—

(1) CSRS.—Subchapter III of chapter 83 of title 5, United States Code, is amended by inserting after section 8345 the following:

"\$ 8345a. Embezzlement or conversion of payments

"(a) EMBEZZLING AND CONVERSION GEN-ERALLY.—

"(1) IN GENERAL.—It shall be unlawful for a representative payee to embezzle or in any manner convert all or any part of the amounts received from payments received as a representative payee to a use other than for the use and benefit of the minor or individual on whose behalf such payments were received.

["(2) REVOCATION.—If the Office determines that a representative payee has embezzled or converted payments as described in paragraph (1), the Office shall promptly revoke payments to the representative payee.]

"(2) REVOCATION.—If the Office determines that a representative payee has embezzled or converted payments as described in paragraph (1), the Office shall promptly—

"(A) revoke the certification for payment of benefits to the representative payee; and

((B) certify payment—

"(i) to another representative payee; or

"(ii) if the interest of the individual under this title would be served thereby, to the individual.

"(b) PENALTY.—Any person who violates subsection (a)(1) shall be fined under title 18, imprisoned for not *more than 5 years*, or *both*.". [more than 5 years, or both. "(c) PRIMA FACIE EVIDENCE.—Any willful neglect or refusal by a representative payee to make and file proper accountings or reports concerning the amounts received from payments authorized under section 8345(e) as required by law shall be taken to be sufficient evidence prima facie of the embezzlement or conversion of such amounts.".]

(2) FERS.—Subchapter VI of chapter 84 of title 5, United States Code, is amended by inserting after section 8466 the following:

### \*§ 8466a. Embezzlement or conversion of payments

"(a) EMBEZZLING AND CONVERSION GEN-ERALLY.—

"(1) IN GENERAL.—It shall be unlawful for a representative payee to embezzle or in any manner convert all or any part of the amounts received from payments received as a representative payee to a use other than for the use and benefit of the minor or individual on whose behalf such payments were received.

["(2) REVOCATION.—If the Office determines that a representative payee has embezzled or converted payments as described in paragraph (1), the Office shall promptly revoke payments to the representative payee.]

<sup>(1</sup>(2) REVOCATION.—If the Office determines that a representative payee has embezzled or converted payments as described in paragraph (1), the Office shall promptly—

"(A) revoke the certification for payment of benefits to the representative payee; and

"(B) certify payment—

"(i) to another representative payee; or

"(ii) if the interest of the individual under this title would be served thereby, to the individual.

"(b) PENALTY.—Any person who violates subsection (a)(1) shall be fined under title 18, imprisoned for not *more than 5 years*, or *both*.". [more than 5 years, or both.

"(c) PRIMA FACIE EVIDENCE.—Any willful neglect or refusal by a representative payee to make and file proper accountings or reports concerning the amounts received from payments authorized under section 8466(c) as required by law shall be taken to be sufficient evidence prima facie of the embezzlement or conversion of such amounts.".]

(3) TECHNICAL AND CONFORMING AMEND-MENTS.—

(A) The table of sections for chapter 83 of title 5, United States Code, is amended by inserting after the item relating to section 8345 the following:

"8345a. Embezzlement or conversion of payments.".

(B) The table of sections for chapter 84 of title 5, United States Code, is amended by inserting after the item relating to section 8466 the following:

"8466a. Embezzlement or conversion of payments.".

(c) DEFERRAL OF PAYMENT PENDING AP-POINTMENT OF REPRESENTATIVE PAYEE.—

(1) CSRS.—Section 8345(e) of title 5, United States Code, is amended—

(A) by inserting "(1)" after "(e)";

(B) in the first sentence, by inserting "(including an organization)" after "person";(C) in the second sentence—

(i) by inserting "(including an organization)" after "any person"; and

(ii) by inserting "and may appropriately receive such payments on behalf of the claimant" after "claimant" the second place it appears; and

(D) by adding at the end the following:

"(2) If the Office determines that direct payment of a benefit to an individual mentally incompetent or under other legal disability would cause substantial harm to the individual, the Office may defer or suspend direct payment of the benefit until such time as the appointment of a representative payee is made. The Office shall resume payment as soon as practicable, including all amounts due.".

(2) FERS.—Section 8466(c) of title 5, United States Code, is amended—

(A) by inserting "(1)" after "(c)";

(B) in the first sentence, by inserting "(including an organization)" after "person";

(C) in the second sentence—(i) by inserting "(including an organization)" after "any person"; and

(ii) by inserting "and may appropriately receive such payments on behalf of the claimant" after "claimant" the second place it appears; and

(D) by adding at the end the following:

"(2) If the Office determines that direct payment of a benefit to an individual mentally incompetent or under other legal disability would cause substantial harm to the individual, the Office may defer or suspend direct payment of the benefit until such time as the appointment of a representative payee is made. The Office shall resume payment as soon as practicable, including all amounts due.".

(d) LIMITATIONS ON APPOINTMENTS OF REP-RESENTATIVE PAYEES.—

(1) CSRS.—Section 8345 of title 5, United States Code, is amended by inserting after subsection (e) the following:

"(f) The Office may not authorize a person to receive payments on behalf of a minor or individual of legal disability under subsection (e) if that person has been convicted of a violation of—

"(1) section 8345a or 8466a;

"(2) section 208 or 1632 of the Social Security Act (42 U.S.C. 408, [and] 1383a); or

"(3) section 6101 of title 38.".

(2) FERS.—Section 8466 of title 5, United States Code, is amended by adding at the end the following:

"(d) The Office may not authorize a person to receive payments on behalf of a minor or individual of legal disability under subsection (c) if that person has been convicted of a violation of—

"(1) section 8345a or 8466a;

"(2) section 208 or 1632 of the Social Security Act (42 U.S.C. 408, [and] 1383a); or

"(3) section 6101 of title 38.".

SEC. 3. IMPLEMENTATION.

[(a) AUTHORIZATION OF PAYMENTS.— Amounts in the Civil Service Retirement and Disability Fund may be used by the Office of Personnel Management, without further appropriation, for the cost of activities of the Office relating to preventing fraud by representative payees (as defined in section 8331 and 8401 of title 5, United States Code, as amended by this Act).]

(a) AUTHORIZATION OF PAYMENTS.—Section 8348(a)(1)(B) of title 5, United States Code, is amended by inserting "in administering fraud prevention under sections 8345, 8345a, 8466, and 8466a of this title," after "8465(b) of this title,".

(b) REGULATIONS.—Not later than 1 year after the date of enactment of this Act, the Office of Personnel Management—

(1) shall promulgate regulations to carry out the amendments made by [this Act] section 2; and

(2) may promulgate additional regulations relating to the administration of the representative payee program.

## SEC. 4. EFFECTIVE DATE.

The amendments made by [this Act] section 2-

 $\left(1\right)$  shall take effect on the date of the enactment of this Act; and

(2) apply on and after the effective date of the regulations promulgated under section 3(b)(1).

Mrs. FISCHER. Mr. President, I ask unanimous consent that the committee-reported amendments be agreed to; that the Lankford amendment at the desk be agreed to; and that the bill, as amended, be considered read a third time and passed; and that the motion to reconsider be considered made and laid upon the table.

The PRESIDING OFFICER. Without objection, it is so ordered.

The committee-reported amendments were agreed to.

The amendment (No. 1251) is as follows:

(Purpose: To make certain corrections)

On page 2, line 11, strike "appointed" and insert "designated"

On page 2, line 23, strike "appointed" and insert "designated"

The bill (S. 1430), as amended, was ordered to be engrossed for a third reading, was read the third time, and passed as follows:

### S. 1430

Be it enacted by the Senate and House of Representatives of the United States of America in Congress assembled,

### SECTION 1. SHORT TITLE.

This Act may be cited as the "Representative Payee Fraud Prevention Act of 2019".

# SEC. 2. REPRESENTATIVE PAYEE FRAUD.

(a) DEFINITIONS.-

(1) CSRS.—Section 8331 of title 5, United States Code, is amended-

(A) in paragraph (31), by striking "and" at the end:

(B) in paragraph (32), by striking the period at the end and inserting "; and"; and

(C) by adding at the end the following:

(33) 'representative payee' means a person (including an organization) designated under section 8345(e)(1) to receive payments on behalf of a minor or an individual mentally incompetent or under other legal disability.

(2) FERS.—Section 8401 of title 5, United States Code, is amended-

(A) in paragraph (37), by striking "and" at the end;

(B) in paragraph (38), by striking the period at the end and inserting "; and"; and

(C) by adding at the end the following:

"(39) 'representative payee' means a person (including an organization) designated under section 8466(c)(1) to receive payments on behalf of a minor or an individual mentally incompetent or under other legal disability.".

(b) EMBEZZLEMENT OR CONVERSION.-(1) CSRS.—Subchapter III of chapter 83 of

title 5, United States Code, is amended by inserting after section 8345 the following:

### "§8345a. Embezzlement or conversion of payments

"(a) EMBEZZLING AND CONVERSION GEN-ERALLY.-

"(1) IN GENERAL.—It shall be unlawful for a representative payee to embezzle or in any manner convert all or any part of the amounts received from payments received as a representative payee to a use other than for the use and benefit of the minor or individual on whose behalf such payments were received.

"(2) REVOCATION.—If the Office determines that a representative payee has embezzled or converted payments as described in paragraph (1), the Office shall promptly-

(A) revoke the certification for payment of benefits to the representative payee; and "(B) certify payment—

"(i) to another representative payee; or

"(ii) if the interest of the individual under this title would be served thereby, to the individual.

(b) PENALTY.—Any person who violates subsection (a)(1) shall be fined under title 18, imprisoned for not more than 5 years, or both."."

(2) FERS.—Subchapter VI of chapter 84 of title 5, United States Code, is amended by inserting after section 8466 the following:

### "§ 8466a. Embezzlement or conversion of pavments

"(a) EMBEZZLING AND CONVERSION GEN-ERALLY.

"(1) IN GENERAL.—It shall be unlawful for a representative payee to embezzle or in any manner convert all or any part of the amounts received from payments received as a representative payee to a use other than for the use and benefit of the minor or individual on whose behalf such payments were received.

"(2) REVOCATION.—If the Office determines that a representative payee has embezzled or converted payments as described in paragraph (1), the Office shall promptly-

'(A) revoke the certification for payment of benefits to the representative pavee; and

"(B) certify payment—

"(i) to another representative payee; or "(ii) if the interest of the individual under this title would be served thereby, to the individual.

(b) PENALTY.—Any person who violates subsection (a)(1) shall be fined under title 18, imprisoned for not more than 5 years, or both.'

(3) TECHNICAL AND CONFORMING AMEND-MENTS.-

(A) The table of sections for chapter 83 of title 5, United States Code, is amended by inserting after the item relating to section 8345 the following:

"8345a. Embezzlement or conversion of payments."

(B) The table of sections for chapter 84 of title 5, United States Code, is amended by inserting after the item relating to section 8466 the following:

"8466a. Embezzlement or conversion of pavments.". (c) DEFERRAL OF PAYMENT PENDING AP-

POINTMENT OF REPRESENTATIVE PAYEE.-

(1) CSRS.—Section 8345(e) of title 5, United States Code, is amended-

(A) by inserting "(1)" after "(e)":

 $(B)\ in the first sentence, by inserting ``(in$ cluding an organization)" after "person";

(C) in the second sentence-

(i) by inserting "(including an organization)" after "any person"; and

(ii) by inserting "and may appropriately receive such payments on behalf of the claimant" after "claimant" the second place it appears; and

(D) by adding at the end the following:

(2) If the Office determines that direct payment of a benefit to an individual mentally incompetent or under other legal disability would cause substantial harm to the individual, the Office may defer or suspend direct payment of the benefit until such time as the appointment of a representative payee is made. The Office shall resume payment as soon as practicable, including all amounts due.'

(2) FERS.—Section 8466(c) of title 5, United mediate consideration.

(A) by inserting "(1)" after "(c)";

(B) in the first sentence, by inserting "(including an organization)" after "person";

(C) in the second sentence-

States Code, is amended-

(i) by inserting "(including an organization)" after "any person"; and

(ii) by inserting "and may appropriately receive such payments on behalf of the claimant" after "claimant" the second place it appears; and

(D) by adding at the end the following:

(2) If the Office determines that direct payment of a benefit to an individual mentally incompetent or under other legal disability would cause substantial harm to the individual, the Office may defer or suspend direct payment of the benefit until such time as the appointment of a representative payee is made. The Office shall resume payment as soon as practicable, including all amounts due.'

(d) LIMITATIONS ON APPOINTMENTS OF REP-RESENTATIVE PAYEES.-

(1) CSRS.—Section 8345 of title 5, United States Code, is amended by inserting after subsection (e) the following:

"(f) The Office may not authorize a person to receive payments on behalf of a minor or individual of legal disability under subsection (e) if that person has been convicted of a violation of-

"(1) section 8345a or 8466a;

"(2) section 208 or 1632 of the Social Security Act (42 U.S.C. 408, 1383a); or

"(3) section 6101 of title 38."

(2) FERS.—Section 8466 of title 5. United States Code, is amended by adding at the end the following:

"(d) The Office may not authorize a person to receive payments on behalf of a minor or individual of legal disability under subsection (c) if that person has been convicted of a violation of—

"(1) section 8345a or 8466a;

"(2) section 208 or 1632 of the Social Security Act (42 U.S.C. 408, 1383a); or

"(3) section 6101 of title 38."

SEC. 3. IMPLEMENTATION.

(a) AUTHORIZATION OF PAYMENTS.—Section 8348(a)(1)(B) of title 5, United States Code, is amended by inserting "in administering fraud prevention under sections 8345, 8345a, 8466, and 8466a of this title," after "8465(b) of this title."

(b) REGULATIONS.—Not later than 1 year after the date of enactment of this Act, the Office of Personnel Management-

(1) shall promulgate regulations to carry out the amendments made by section 2; and (2) may promulgate additional regulations relating to the administration of the representative payee program.

SEC. 4. EFFECTIVE DATE.

The amendments made by section 2-

(1) shall take effect on the date of the enactment of this Act; and

(2) apply on and after the effective date of the regulations promulgated under section 3(b)(1).

DESIGNATING THE COMMUNITY-BASED OUTPATIENT CLINIC OF THE DEPARTMENT OFVET-ERANS AFFAIRS IN BOZEMAN, MONTANA, AS THE TRAVIS W. ATKINS DEPARTMENT OF VET-ERANS AFFAIRS CLINIC

Mrs. FISCHER. Mr. President, I ask unanimous consent that the Com-mittee on Veterans' Affairs be discharged from further consideration of S. 900 and the Senate proceed to its im-

The PRESIDING OFFICER. Without objection, it is so ordered.

The clerk will report the bill by title. The senior assistant legislative clerk read as follows:

A bill (S. 900) to designate the communitybased outpatient clinic of the Department of Veterans Affairs in Bozeman, Montana, as the "Travis W. Atkins Department of Veterans Affairs Clinic".

There being no objection, the committee was discharged and the Senate proceeded to consider the bill.

Mrs. FISCHER. Mr. President, I ask unanimous consent that the bill be